10.

11.

12

13.

14.

CLAY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
REGULAR SCHEDULED PUBLIC MEETING

ORANGE PARK, FLORIDA
January 15, 2013
AGENDA
CHAIR
VICE-CHAIR
TREASURER
SECRETARY

Welcome/Call to Order 4:00 pm

Roli Call

Invocation

Approval of December 11, 2013 Minutes

Action taken at Committee Meetings
DevCom

Comments from the Public

Treasurer’s Report
November/December Financials

Chair’s Report
Staff Report

BLD Project Update

Attorney’s Report

. Economic Development Report

Old Business/New Business/Board Comments

Adjournment

DEBBIE RICKS
CHIP DOBSON
REV. RANDALL

VACANT

Debbie Ricks
Josh Cockrell
Pastor Randall
Debbie Ricks

Debbie Ricks

Debbie Ricks

Pastor Randall
Debbie Ricks
IGS

Greg Clary

Grady Williams
Bil Garrison
Debbie Ricks

Debbie Ricks



Dates of Upcoming CCDA Meetings:

February 19, 2014
March 19, 2014
April 16,2014

May 21, 2014

June 18, 2014

July 16, 2014
August 20, 2014
September 17, 2014

NOTE: Items 4,5 and 7 through 14, above, are subject to discussion, consideration, and
action by the Board of the Clay County Development Authority.

PUBLIC COMMENTS: Pursuant to E.S. s, 286.0114 (2013) /, and Clay County
Development Authority policy], speakers intending to offer public comment must complete a
provided speaker’s card, turn in the same to the recording secretary for the public meeting,
and may address the Board when recognized by the Chair of the meeting with their public
comments for a period of not more than three (3) minutes. The Chair of the meeting has
the authority and discretion to make special provisions for a group or faction
spokesperson. The Chair of the meeting has all requisite authority and discretion to
maintain orderly conduct or proper decorum of the public meeting.



CLAY COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
BOARD OF PIRECTORS MEETING
MINUTES

December 11, 2013

Present: Debbie Ricks, Chip Dobson, William Randall, Greg Clary, Tom Morris,
Grady Williams, Counsel

Absent: Matt Welch, Virginia Hall, Paz Patel, Jan Conrad, Joe Mobley
Guests: David Cohen, Ken Willey
Staff: Josh Cockrell, Kerri Stewart, Bill Garrison

Call to Order: Chair, Debbie Ricks called the Clay County Development Authority
(“CCDA") Board meeting to order at 4:00 PM.

Invocation: William Randall
Approval of November 20, 2013 CCDA Board Meeting Minutes

Approval of November 15, 2013 Big League Dreams Committee Special
Meeting Minutes

Approval of November 15, 2013 CCDA Special Meeting Minutes

Treasurer’s Report: Kerri Stewart recommended that the treasurer’s report be
deferred until the next meeting due to the financials not being available at the time
of agenda setting.

Chair’s Report: Debbie Ricks deferred her report until later in the meeting,
Public Comment: none

Big League Dreams Project Update: Grady Williams presented the BLD first
amendment to license agreement through March 31, 2014. Greg Clary made a
motion to approve as presented. Chip Dobson seconded the motion and the motion
carried.

Greg Clary presented an unsolicited proposal from Big League Dreams. David
Cohen recommends that staff is authorized to publish the unsolicited proposal
Posted for 2 weeks and allow other proposers an additional 30 days to respond.
Then determine how the proposals are to be evaluated. Evaluate, and then move
forward with best ranked proposal. Staff is directed to publish notice on reception of

1



the unsolicited proposal and seek competing proposals. Proposal provides design,
planning, construction related services, and operation maintenance of a park. Chair
Debbie Ricks asked if other parks have undergone the same process. David Cohen
advised that the state statutes be followed accordingly regarding to public-private
partnerships. Greg Clary advised that this is only a proposal not a final term of deal.
Greg Clary made a motion to direct staff to publish/advertise request for proposals.
Tom Morris seconded. Tom Morris asked if this process is consistent with Florida
statute. Greg Clary confirmed. Grady Williams asked David Cohen if for some reason
they get a proposal for someone else are they free to consider a proposal for their
services. David Cohen shared that the board can consider reviewing other
proposals. BLD proposal is not a firm offer and is open to negotiation. Motion
passed to publish the request for proposals.

Greg Clary presented an invoice for consideration for David Cohen’s services.
Recommends the board accepts the invoice as presented. Motion by Greg Clary to
approve and fund the invoice dated through Oct. 31, 2013. Motion seconded by Tom
Morris and the motion carries.

Greg Clary shared that the BLD Committee is working hard to bring this to a close
and being diligent with CCDA funds.

Chair’s Report: Debbie Ricks met with IGS staff Josh Cockrell and Kerri Stewart
along with Grady Williams regarding the transition. She reminded the board to
check their CCDA email accounts. Emails are auto archived, creates ease of public
records requests, and it is being paid for. Requests board to check email at least
once a week if not more for any correspondence or notices. States staff has
requested to meet with her a few times before the upcoming meetings. Start looking
at how we are going to focus for the next year. May go down to bi-monthly meetings
depending on business brought forth. Also examine marketing and other financing
opportunities.

Transition Report: Josh Cockrell provided an update on the transition. Meetings
have been held with Bill Garrison, Grady Willlams and staff, Tim Coleman, IT and
website team. Shared that he will be meeting with Bill Garrison and Camp Blanding
regarding grants. Reminded Board that the CCDA emails will be used for
correspondence. Mentioned website updates to better market the CCDA. Will be
formulating a public records policy/procedure.

Attorney’s Report: Grady Williams stated that the transition appears to be going
well. He thanked Bill Garrison, Betty Hicks, Kellie Collins and staff for what they
have been doing. His understanding is the CCDA will continue to pay for their
services through the end of this month. Moving forward will need to look at other
economic development opportunities to use them for. Potential tenant
problem..tenant behind on some payments. May need board action and further
discussion. Greg Clay inquired what roles the CCDA has with the tenants. Grady
Williams stated that the CCDA manages the tenants and collects the rents.

2



Economic Development Report: Bill Garrison met with Josh Cockrell and Kerri
Stewart. He feels that the team is stronger having them on board. Not much to
report other than an article in Clay Today which announced the grants at Camp
Blanding for an airspace control system and mass notification system. He and Jos
Cockrell will be meeting with them. He hopes that the CCDA will receive
administrative fees from the grant. Economic Development Council is focusing on
strengthening the organization and proactively recruiting prospects. Has had
meetings with Brian Knight who is trying to get an IT incubator going. The small
business development center is progressively pursuing county funding.

Old Business: none
New Business: The next CCDA Board meeting will be on January 15, 2014.

Adjourned: 4:37 PM.

DATES OF UPCOMING CCDA MEETINGS:
January 15,2014

February 19,2014

March 19, 2014

April 16,2014

May 21, 2014

June 18,2014

july 16,2014

August 20, 2014

September 17,2014




COLEMAN & ASSOCIATES

Cerified Public Accounting Firm

ACCOUNTANTS’ COMPILATION REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Clay County Development Authority
Orange Park, FL

We have compiled the accompanying govemment-wide balance sheet of Clay County
Development Authority (a governmental organization) as of November 30, 2013 and 2012, and
the related statements of revenues and expenses for the one month and two months then
ended, and the accompanying supplementary statement of revenues and expenses — budget vs,
actual — current month and current vear to date.”

We have not audited or reviewed the accompanying financial statements and, accordingly, do
not express an opinion or provide any assurance about whether the financial staterments are in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and
for designing, implementing, and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements.

CQur responsibility is to conduct the compllation in accordance with Statements on Standards for
Accounting and Review Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
The objective of a compilation is to assist management in presenting financial information in the
form of financial statements without undertaking to obtain or provide any assurance that there
are no material modifications that should be made to the financial statements.

Management has elected to omit the management discussion and analysis, the governmental
fund financial statements and substantially all of the disclosures required by generally accepted
accounting principles. If the omitted management discussior: and analysis, governmental fund
financial statements and disclosures were included in the financial statements, they might
influence the user’s conclusions about the Qrganization’s financial position and changes in net
assets. Accordingly, these financial statements are not designed for those who are not informed
about such matters.

We are not independent with respect to the Clay County Development Authority.

Coleman P Rssocictes CPH LU
December 11, 2013

P.O. Box 8279 - Fleming Island, Florida 32006 + (P} 504-284-9481 » {F) 904-284-9482
www.colemanandassociatescpa.com




1:10 PM Clay County Development Authority

12/11113 Governmentwide Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of November 36, 2013 and 2012

Nov 38, 13 Nov 30, 12
ABSSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings :
1000071 - Wells Fargo(Operating) 73,152.40 19,666.98
100002 - First Atlantic Checking - 1484 48,084.43 456,085.62
100004 - First Atlantic (CD) 50,000.00 50,000.00 ‘
100005 - First Atlantic 2 {CD) 48,988.00 £0,000.00 :
100007 « Investment - Florida Prime - A 141,605.18 130,378.40 ;
100008 - Investment - Florida Prime - B 7.285.90 16,399.20 ;
100018 . Compass Bank Money Market - Pub 175,267.88 175,076.03 :
100018 . Firg Atlantic Bank MMKT -1493 967,416.65 860,015.40
00025 - Fifth-Third CD 76,428.44 78,305.00
100026 . Fifth-Third 2 {CD) 76,428.44 76,305.00
Total Checking/Savings 1,688,667.30 1,710,175.64
Accounts Recelvable
115002 - Revenue Receivable 571.97 25 827,15
Total Accounts Receivable 571.97 25,327.1%
Other Current Asssts
115000 - Accrued Interest Recelvable 755.00 75500
115007 - Loan to Clay Co. Chamber of Com 107,523.50 140,058.39
115004 . Loan Clay County Cham - Def Gri 0.00 21,700.00 {
1498 . Lindeposited Funds 513.99 0.00
Tots| Other Current Assets 108,852,489 162,513.38
Total Current Assets 1.776,091.76  1,898,016.18
Fixed Assets
162850 - Leasehold Improvements - Deveom 28,842.00 28,842.00 :
166900 - Office Equipment 58,347.98 5B,347.98
167800 - Accum Depreciation -84,778.00 -B4,778.00
Total Fixed Assets 2,411.08 241198
Other Assets
1160000 - Note Receivable - $t Johns Coun 48,000.00 60,000.00
162900 - Equity Interest - Deveom 194,888.56 194,688,586
1563000 - Ljcense Agresment - Big League 450,000.00 450,000.00
1
Totat Other Asgets £92,688.56 704,688.56
TOTAL ASSETS 2471,192.30 2,805,116.72
LIABILITIES & EQUITY o
Linbifities
Currend Liabilities
Accounts Payable
200000 - Accounts Payable i $,226.18 18800 {
Tota! Accounts Payable 3,226.19 198.00 ;
Other Current Liablilities
220000 . Security Deposits 2,788.00 1,138.00
25500 - Sales Tax Payable L _'{_5‘:3._99 o _ baga
Tatat Other Current Liabilities . 23080 .. 1.202.03
Total Cusrent Liabilities Bz 14m 03
Tota! LighilHies 6,167.18 1,401,063
Equlty
272000 - Net Assst Batance 1,B08,908.80 1,908,583.80
280004 - invest In Fixed Assets 848,102.04 348,102.04
32000 - Retained Earnings 217,484 .37 368,437.18 i
Net ihcome _ -10,555.08 o -22,817.34 :
Total Equity 248502512 2,608,716.69 '

See Accountants Compilation Report

Page 1




1:10 PM Clay County Development Authority

12111713 Governmentwide Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of November 30, 2013 and 2012

Nov 30,13 Nov 30, 12 :

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 2,471,182.30 2,605,116.72

See Accountants Compilation Report Page 2



1. aBag

60rs85'0L-

o0'8ELEL-

uodsy uogeidinoy s JUeIEN0oaY a8y

00'TLB'2G1- 00'662'5E- 860042~ SO 33N
00°2i8°RG1- 00'882'58- BO'S55'0L- 00'98L'EY- 66°90F'2~ w0y Lieuppag ey
00°GB6' 161 00'565'08 BY'GYE'0E 00" LBE'GE 16'2FES eguatlxa @0y
GO"000 001 00'089'91 000 00'ees'y aoo wjosg welwidolpasd unuiuc?) - 00gELs
0orgie's 00°541 627006 00°GL1 0T EEe sosuetxy Bunedg pue 010 - DISELS
00°020'7 o0'0ge 8y'LLE 00Ol 617164 SUGRAEIBYNS 7@ SANQ - PEYELS
00°00% 000e 8Ly 00'88 802 sabiRy) aAILS ¢ SEPELS
00'000'4 Q00LE 600 QUER co'o Bugaey sseusng - GBPELS
0000’81 000OE'R 00'00Ee 00’055 000591 eRUAdXY 4Ty WOOARY] - OSYELS
00°008"t SE'8Y2 G0 asueInsul Aynqert - opreLs
0O'008'VE 00059t 0OT00E" 2 QU'ses ousi0'e 8O3 (RUOISSSJOLd - 00ELS
0000008 ou'veD's YEERES ohiat'y {995ty 300 o) Bujpung - poozis

asusdxs)
OU'EZ}'SY 00'962°s EE0BL'E 00'5¥9°2 26°SER'9 atwcon jmof
00'228'01 00'p00 arees'y 00662 95'828'¥ SONUBARY SNOBURDPIS| - 00069E
ov'epe'ae Q0'26e'd Ol LY 005612 05'981'2 seRRACY B SIUSH - GDOTYE
00'008°'1 ouone Fra7t] Q0051 ot L3v sHUlLIER JWaNRSaAY; - 000 198

SO
ssuDtxgWoou| Awipio
wbpng fenuuy 1wBhpng gLA £} AON - 00O jafipng €1 AON
£L0Z JequimsaN S)8RY WY
jenidy o} wmm—u«_m - mwm:mn_xm pue wm:cm>mm J0 u:m:._mymum gkl

Ajpoyiny Juewdojeaag Ajunon Aepy Wt 6044



1 sbeg

8192 000 o0o o0 00'S20't 6151 VLGL

1A ) oo 000 0’0 oo 6L L5L U] [RUBUUO] gnid eyt

00'S20'® 000 000 00 Q080 000 stapim Apern
W01 Qe < 06-19 09-1ig cE- 1L alng

£108 ‘0E 19qWIBACN JO SY
Arewwng 6uiby d/y eIz
Aoyinyg Juswdojeasg Ajunos Aep Wd 0454



COLEMAN & ASSOCIATES

Certified Public Accounting Firm

ACCOUNTANTS’ COMPILATION REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Clay County Development Authority
Orange Park, FL

We have compiled the accompanying govemment-wide balance sheet of Clay County
Development Authority (a governmental organization) as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and
the related statements of revenues and expenses for the one month and three months then
ended, and the accompanying supplementary statement of revenues and expenses — budget vs.
actual — current month and current year to date.

We have not audited or reviewed the accompanying finandial statements and, accordingly, do
not express an opinion or provide any assurance about whether the financial statements are in
accordance with accounting principies generally accepted in the United States of America.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and
for designing, implementing, and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements.

Our responsibility is to conduct the compilation in accordance with Statements on Standards for
Accounting and Review Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The objective of a compilation is to.assist management in presenting financial information in the
form of financial statements without undertaking to obtain or provide any. assurance that there
are no material modifications that should be made to the financial statementss.

Management has elected to omit the management discussion and analysis, the governmental
fund financial statements and substantially all of the disclosures required by generally accepted
accounting principles. If the omitted management discussion and analysis, governmental fund
financial statements and disclosures were included in the financial statements, they “might
influence the user’s conclusions about the Organization’s financial position and changes in net
assets. Accordingly, these financial statements are not designed for those who are not informed

about such matters.
We are not independent with respect to the Clay County Development Authority.

Loleran Rresoliotes C,M Lew
January 9, 2014

P.O. Box 8279 - Fleming Island, Florida 32006 « (P) 304-264-9481 = {F) 904-284-9482
www.colemanandassociatescpa.com




Accrual Basis

Clay County Development Authority

Governmentwide Balance Sheet
As of Decembar 31, 2013 and 2012

ASSETS
Current Assots
Checking/Savings
100001 - Weils Fargo{Operating)
100002 - First Atlantic Checking - 1484
100004 - First Atlantic (CD)
160005 - First Atlantic 2 (CD)
100007 - Investment - Florida Prime - A
100008 - Investment - Florida Prime - B
100016 - Gompass Bank Monoy Market - Pub
100018 - First Atlantic Bank MMKT 1433
100025 - Fifth-Third CD
£00026 - Fifth-Third 2 (CD)

Total Chacking/Savings

Accounts Recelvable
115002 - Revenue Receivabie

Total Accounts Receivable

Other Current Assets
115000 - Accrued interest Receivable
118001 - Loan to Clay Co. Chamber of Com
115004 - Loan Ciay County Cham - Def Grt

Total Other Current Assels

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets
162950 - Laasehold Improvements - Devcom
165900 - Office Equipment
467900 - Accum Depreciation

Totat Fixed Assets

Other Assets
160000 - Note Receivable - S5t Johns Coun
162900 - Equity Interest - Devcom
163000 - License Agreemont - Big League

Total Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabillties
Accounts Payable
200000 - Accounts Payable

Total Accounts Payable

Other Current | fabliities
220000 - Security Deposits
25500 - Sales Tax Payable

Total Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities
ity
272000 - Net Asset Balance
280000 « Invest in Fixed Assels

32000 - Retained Earnings
Net Income

Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUATY

See Accountants Compillation Report

Pec 31,13 Dec 31, 12
3,129.08 19,854.05
94.836.75 444 154.41
50,100.90 50,000.00
49,998.00 50,000.00
142,049.64 130,747.11
6,860.23 16.057.94
175.281.85 175,090.97
967,543 87 660,015.40
76.428.44 76,305.00
76,428 44 76,305.00
1,642,657.20 1,698,329.88
1,144.96 31,769.36
1,144.96 31,769.36
755.00 755.00
107,523.50 137,380.14
0.00 21,700.00
108,278.50 158,835.14
1,752,080.66 1,889,934.38
28,842 00 28,842.00
58,347.98 58.347.98
-84,778.00 -84,778.00
2.411.98 2,411.98
48,000.00 60,000.00
194.686.56 194,688 56
450,000.00 450,000.00
692,688.56 704,688.56
2,447,481.20 2,597,034.92
1,882.76 1.305.80
1,882.76 1,305.80
2,788.00 1,138.00
14917 64.03
2,937.17 1,202.03
4819.93 2,607.83
4,810.93 2.507.83
1,908,993.80 1,008,993.80
349,102.04 345,102.04
217.484.37 368,437.19
3321884 .32,005.94
2,442,361.27 2 504 527.09
2,447,181.20 2,597,034.92

Page 1



} eBeg

wodey uonpeldwos SJUEIUNOIY 885

00'ZL8'294 00'Z48'6€- ve'812'ee 00'EL5'v)- 199942 euIcaL 19N
00'Z.8'254- go'zi8'ee- ¥88L2'ce" Q0EL5'PL- 169928 swoou| Aisuipi0 38N
00'566'46) 005082y 09'v09'sY 1 CAFA 8E'662'ST esuedxy #J01
00°000'004 00'666'Y2 cO9tl'p) g0eee'e goacl'vl yefold ewdojareq Qunuua) - 0BELS
0'6LE'9 00GLL'E G0'ECL0'} 00'000'2 GLZIL sesusdxg Bupeied PUE @30 - OLSELE
00020 00°0CE 6115 00°0L) 0002k suopdudegng § seng - perels
00005 oo'zEL 1088 o00'ZY zeee soBipyy) 9OjAOE - COYELS
00000 00'EST oo 00cs 000 Supeey SsOUIENG - 08VELS
00’0086} 000867 00088y 00059't 00’059’ ssuedxa 4T3 100400 - 08KE LS
00°00§"3 cEePZ 000 eaumnswy Atiger - 0pvele
00008y 00'008'y SO 1984UO0S UORRASIUIWRY - Q0ETIS
00008'vE 00'6i¥'e 000062 00°628 007009 508, |BUO|BSRJ0L] - DDEELT
0000005 00'L0%'21 1001’21 00201y Pi-3: 180 4 009 6} Bujpund - 000ZLS
aguedx3
00'€ZL o 00'886'L 98's8e'zL 00'LE9'2 L8 06T swosu| [€0),
00 L1691 00568 0LZVEP 00° 162 8c GONLIOABY SHOAUBIISOSIN - 00069E
o0'ove'ez 008650 05956’ 00’9612 ou'eeL'e sepefioy '§ muel - 000298
00°008°1 00'05¥ 29'082') 00'0st 67 10¢ sBujuieg Jusunsaa) - 000LSE
IO
asuedxgewoouy Aeulpio
ipng (enuuy 1efipng (LA £} 990 -130 je6png g5 280
£1.02Z Jequisdeq sigeg {eniooy
jenidy O} wwm_u:m - mmmcm&xm pue SONUIAIY JO jualuslels ¥LIBOID

Asoyny yuswdojersq fLunod Aeyn Wd 57



} ofieg

L2088’y 000 000 000 arzel’s  OoOOC) TvioL
00°0T4 000 000 000 000 oo0ei DU [EUBUPUOD GID SUL
00°089°F 000 000 000 00'059't 000 o1 'wodaeq
T AN 000 000 ou'o oL'Zit 00’0 eaIeWILOD JO Jequieys Aunod feid
WLOL 06 < 06-19 08 it g~} sy
£L0zZ ‘1§ Jequuada( Jo sY
Aewwng mﬂ_m< div PiI60/10

Apoyny juswdojeaeq Aunod Aejd Wd 65¥



i obed

e8'vrLE  00°0 00°0 46318 66°ZL8 00’0 W01
oedPL'L 000 00°C 1G4S 66'2.5 000 o); BupeauiBu3 10304
Wiol o6 < 08~ 19 08-18 ot jusxind

£10Z ‘€ Jequiedad jo sY
Arewuang Buiby ¥V #4160/

fuoyyny juewdojaaag AQunod Rejn Nd 98P



